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Keesbury Manor Heritage Project
Evaluation Excavation Repof015

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 ARCHAEOLOGICAL AUIBTORICABACKGROUND
The historical back ground toelproject is covered in the leaflétat goes along side this report.

The site at Keesburfalso known as Kensbury but referred to as Keesbury throughout this report),
conssts of about 2 acres and consists of a moated platform, fish pond and some ridge and furrow. The
scheduling describes the site as:

'Formerly held by the De Cawodamily by sargentry for keeping the King wood at Langwith. Now a
dry, ilkdefined moat cotaining the hall fragments of which were visible at the turn of the century. The
Y2NIKSNY LI NI Aa RIYF3ISR 0@ NBOSY(l K2dzAaAy3ad ¢ KSNB

The site(see Figure 1ip of considerable historic interest to the Cawood communibo wish to better
understand the role that it plays as a manorial centre in the archaeological landscape of the medieval
and post medieval histarilandscape of the villageaRicular intaest lies in the relationship witkthe
powerful presence athe Archbishop of York on the manorial site adjacent to Keesbury.
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Figure 1: Location Map for Cawood showing Keesbury marked at a Moat

Cawood sits on the confluence of the rivers Ouse amaé at the point that the rivers (flowing south)
break through the EsickMoraine (running east west). This location is likely to have been signifinant
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the prehistoric landscapeferial photography carried out as part of the English Heritage, National
Mapping Programme (Vale of York Project), has suggested field systeragricultural land around
Cawood that may be of Iron Age origin (NYCC HER). These have been allocated monument numbers in
the HER but have not been investigated furtl{f€ee Figure 2)They are located at Oakwood Farm,
Model Farm, Wood Ends Farm, ElmelFarm and Cawood Common.

There isevidence for a Romano Bti site located on the northern edge of Cawood at the Brick and Tile
works (See Figure 2Yhe North Yorkshire County Council Historic Environment Record (HER) notes that
excavations were propted by finds of Roman pottery during clay extraction. They located two
interconnecting ditches with Roman material in the fill. Roof tile fragments suggested a possible house
nearby of which the boundary ditches were partially excavated. The house maybeawn lost to clay
extraction. The assemblage included animal bone and tegula (roof tiles) dating t&' the53 century,

about AD 200 to AD 400 (Corda 1935)Aerial photography has also suggested that some partial
enclosures to the south west of Cawbare of Romano British date, however, as with the lIron Age
enclosures these have not been investigated on the ground.
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Figure 2: Noteable sites in Cawood.

The earliest historical references to Cawood are suggested in the NYQEQ b¢ERbund AD 935, dter
lOKStadlryQa @GAOG2NE G . NUzyl yodzZNBKEZ ¢KSy /I g22R
suggest that a hall or settlement already stood here.

Although the Archbishops of York had a residencetst is known today a€awood castle #site at
Keesbury (or Kensburyias been identifiedby the NYCC HER and the National Monuments Resord
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the seat of the de Cawood family who held a mahere independently of the archiepiscopal estate.
The moated site is thus an important feature relatitmgthe history of the town of Cawood and its
remains may be contrasted with the nearby archiepga residence at Cawood Cas{Hational
Monument Record 1997)

As early as AD 975, part of Cawood was specified as not belonging to the Archbishops [D&¥Muité.

the probable presence of property held by the Archbishop of York and anothaamed landowner,
Cawood is not mentioned in the Domesday Bolbks possible that the Cawood famihkgceived the
manorat Keesbunyas a royal grant soon after the Nnan Conquest and was certainly in their hands by
1201. TheCawood family then held the manor until 1454. There is evidence that the site was
abandoned in 1390, 1403 and 1450 when it was described as worthless.

Al Oswald has noted that Cawood village ia thedieval period probably reflected the fact that there

FNB (62 f2NRfeée K2f RAy3da Ay GKS @Attt 3ISd ¢KS ! NOKO
residence and the village to thdorth West Whilst the de Cawoods held Keesbury and tilage to the

south east (marked green in Figure 2).

Although cultivated for a short period the moated island at Keesbury remains undeveloped and could
retain buried remains of medieval buildings. Over the years the moat has bd@lednin places and
because of the low situation the moat silts will contain environmental evidence.

A small structure on the plathby ¢+ a adGAftt &l y Reedlre B)yandiplErSof thecpt N Q &
building from Janet Pexton 1988 and survey by Barbara Hiton5)(seeFigure 37) The building was

of interest as part of the remarkabtange of 1% century brick houses in Cawood (DW Black 1975). It is

now demolished.

Figure 3: Two ladies stand by the brick structure on the moat platform.

Possibly the Wale sisters Adatke and Matilda (circa 1902).



Around 6,000 moated manor sites are known in England. They consist of wide ditches, often or
seasonally watefilled partly or completely enclosing one or more islands of dry ground on which stood
domestic or religious buildgs. In some cases, the islands were used for horticulture. The majority of
moated sites served as prestigious aristocratic and seigniorial residences with the provision of a moat
intended as a status symbol rather than a practical military defence.

Thepeak building period for moated sites is between 1250 and 1350 but mostly in the south and east of
England. They are important for the understanding of distribution of wealth and status in the
countryside. Medieval moated sites often lay at the centre ofider agricultural complex. Features
associated with these sites are fipbnds and field systems (National Monument Records 199¢ams

be seen in the extant archaeology at Keesbury.

1.2 CAWOOD AND ITS LANRSE

Cawood is located on the river Ouse betweéark to the north and Selby to the south. The landscape is
dominated by glacial features and the valley of the river Ouse See fig@tawbod sits on the edge of

the valley of the Ouse, a valley that is only a few meters deep now as it is filled witturalllCawood

sits on glacial sands laid down in the lakes formed as the last Ice Age ended some 12,000 years ago. The
sand was blown into dunes as the lake dried up, these are still preserved in places. One such dune forms
a low ridge in the area where Cawd grew.Keesbury is built on the north eastern end of that dune.

Below the sands are clays, also deposited by the glacial lakes and then below that the older Sherwood
Standstones. To the north east of Cawood is the Escrick Moraine, a huge ridge ahdaebbles left

by the last glacier. This forms a natural east west route way across the Vale of York, putting Cawood on
an important spot for communications, both on foot along the moraine and by boat on the rivers Ouse
and nearby Wharf.
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Figure 4:Cawood Landscape and Geology

2 RESULTS

The seven trenches (including one test pig enarked on the map in figure &ach trench has individual
phasing thats drawn togetheras a summary in the time line at the end of the report conclusion (pages

48¢ 53)



The location of each trench was located with a specific question in mind to help us understand the site
at KeesburyTrench 1 was located to look for evidence for a building on the moat platform. Trench 2
investigated a raised area to the south west lo¢ tmoat. Trench 3 investigated the edge of the moat to
look for ancillary buildings and to evaluate preservation in the moat. Trench 4 was to look for evidence
for a drain or ditch running to the north west of the moat, it was also to investigate the hplitysof

there being a building located here noted on the enclosure map. Trench 5 was a test pit to try to locate
the SW¢ NE running ditch mentioned in Trench 4. Trench 6 evaluated the deposits in an area outside
the scheduled monument that showed conéas geophysical responses. Trench 7 was excavated to
investigate the location of the structure known as ter 2($ek [Eigdre 5 on the next page)

The intention of the trenches was to inform us of specific questions but more so to evaluate the
archaeologral potential of the site at Keesbury and its archaeological value to the community.
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Figure 5Trench Location Map.

2.1 TRENCH. LOOKING FOR THE HBUS

Trench 1 was intended to investigate possible structures or a house on the platform. From the

geophysical survey it appeared that most of a building might sit under the garden to the north of the

platform to which we did not have access.

Phase 1
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Phase 1 was stratigraphically the earliest activity identified in the tréSele Figure)6lt is represated

by three post hole$1006 [1011], 1074 [1075] and 1076 [1Q) These sulyectangular post holes where
about 30cm by 30 cm and did not contain packing. They were in a general alignment that might suggest
they formed part of a structure or fenc&he wsts were all cut into natural san@nly one of the posts
contained datable material, 1074 containing a sherd of red gritty ware that was identified as Anglo
Scandinavian in date.

Figure 6 Phase 1, three subectangular post holes.

This limited phas suggests that there is occupation here during the Anglo Scandinavian period,
although wecannot be certain that one sherd of pottery dates these features. The sherd may be
residual, but the post holes are non the less stratigraphically the earliestrésaiini the trench.

The post 1006 was packed at the base of its post with a clay and mortar mixture that we described as a
WL & QONF G §2RENY ()SNX¥a 6458 FAIANB T
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